

FILED
10-30-2023
CLERK OF WISCONSIN
SUPREME COURT

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF WISCONSIN
NO. 2023AP1399-OA

Rebecca Clarke, Ruben Anthony, Terry
Dawson, Dana Glasstein, Ann Groves-Lloyd,
Carl Hujet, Jerry Iverson, Tia Johnson, Angie
Kirst, Selika Lawton, Fabian Maldonado,
Annemarie McClellan, James McNett,
Brittany Muriello, Ela Joosten (Pari) Schils,
Nathaniel Slack, Mary Smith-Johnson, Denise
Sweet and Gabrielle Young,
Petitioners,

Governor Tony Evers, in his official capacity;
Nathan Atkinson, Stephen Joseph Wright,
Gary Krenz, Sarah J. Hamilton, Jean-Luc
Theffeault, Somesh Jha, Joanne Kane and
Leah Dudley,
Intervenors-Petitioners,

v.

Wisconsin Elections Commission; Don Millis,
Robert F. Spindell, Jr., Mark L. Thomsen, Ann
S. Jacobs, Marge Bostelmann, and Joseph J.
Czarnezki, in their official capacities as
Members of the Wisconsin Election
Commission; Meagan Wolfe, in her official
capacity as the Administrator of the
Wisconsin Elections Commission; Andre
Jacque, Tim Carpenter, Rob Hutton, Chris
Larson, Devin LeMahieu, Stephen L. Nass,
John Jagler, Mark Spreitzer, Howard
Marklein, Rachael Cabral-Guevara, Van H.
Wanggaard, Jesse L. James, Romaine Robert
Quinn, Dianne H. Hesselbein, Cory Tomczyk,
Jeff Smith, and Chris Kapenga, in their
official capacities as Members of the
Wisconsin Senate,
Respondents,

Wisconsin Legislature; Billie Johnson, Chris
Goebel, Ed Perkins, Eric O'Keefe, Joe
Sanfelippo, Terry Moulton, Robert Jensen,
Ron Zahn, Ruth Elmer and Ruth Steck,
Intervenors-Respondents.

**IN AN ORIGINAL ACTION TO THE
SUPREME COURT OF WISCONSIN**

**SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX OF SENATORS CARPENTER, LARSON,
SPREITZER, HESSELBEIN AND SMITH**

PINES BACH LLP
Tamara B. Packard, SBN 1023111
Eduardo E. Castro, SBN 1117805
122 West Washington Ave., Suite 900
Madison, WI 53703
(608) 251-0101 (telephone)
(608) 251-2883 (facsimile)
tpackard@pinesbach.com
ecastro@pinesbach.com

*Attorneys for Respondents Senators
Carpenter, Larson, Spreitzer, Hesselbein,
and Smith*

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Description	Page Numbers
Wisconsin Senate Bill 575, 76th Wisconsin Legislative Session, May 14, 1963.	Dem. Senators-004-Dem. Senators 019
Wisconsin Joint Resolution Number 49, 76th Wisconsin Legislative Session, June 3, 1963.	Dem. Senators-020-Dem. Senators 026

STATE OF WISCONSIN
IN SENATE

No. 575, S.

May 14, 1963—Introduced by COMMITTEE ON LEGISLATIVE PRO-
CEDURE, by request of Senators Krueger, Meunier and Leonard.

Referred to Committee on Governmental and Veterans' Affairs.

A BILL

1 To repeal 4.05; to amend and revise 4.01 (except Dodge and Waukesha
2 counties) and 4.02; and to repeal and recreate 4.01 (Dodge and
3 Waukesha counties) and 4.04 of the statutes, relating to appor-
4 tioning and districting the members of the assembly and senate.

5 The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and
6 assembly, do enact as follows:

7 SECTION 1. 4.01 (except Dodge and Waukesha counties) and 4.02
8 of the statutes are amended and revised to read:

9 4.01 ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. Until there shall be is a new ap-
10 portionment, the members of the assembly shall be apportioned among
11 the several districts of the state as hereinafter mentioned, and each
12 district shall be entitled to elect one member of the assembly.

13 (1) The counties of Barron, Calmuet, Chippewa, Clark, Columbia,
14 Douglas, Dunn, Grant, Green, Jefferson, Lincoln, Marinette, Mon-
15 roe, Oconto, Ozaukee, Portage, St. Croix, Sauk, Vernon, Walworth,
16 Washington and Waupaca shall each constitute an assembly district.

Bill No. 575, S.

2

- 1 (2) The counties of Crawford and Richland shall constitute an
2 assembly district.
- 3 (3) The counties of Door and Kewaunee shall constitute an assem-
4 bly district.
- 5 (4) The counties of Jackson and Trempealeau shall constitute an
6 assembly district.
- 7 (5) The counties of Florence, ~~Forest~~ and ~~Langlade~~ *Marinette* shall
8 constitute an assembly district.
- 9 (6) The counties of Iowa and Lafayette shall constitute an assem-
10 bly district.
- 11 (7) *The counties of Price and Taylor shall constitute an assembly*
12 *district.*
- 13 (8) *The counties of Forest and Oconto shal constitute an assembly*
14 *district.*
- 15 (9) The counties of ~~Price~~ *Langlade* and ~~Taylor~~ *Lincoln* shall con-
16 stitute an assembly district.
- 17 (10) *The counties of Menominee and Shawano shall constitute an*
18 *assembly district.*
- 19 (11) The counties of Adams, Juneau and Marquette shall constitute
20 an assembly district.
- 21 (12) The counties of Ashland and Bayfield shall constitute an as-
22 sembly district.
- 23 (13) The counties of Buffalo, ~~Pierce~~ and ~~Pepin~~ *and Pierce* shall con-
24 stitute an assembly district.

Bill No. 575, S.

3

- 1 (14) The counties of Burnett and Polk shall constitute an assembly
2 district.
- 3 (15) The counties of Iron, Oneida and Vilas shall constitute an
4 assembly district.
- 5 (16) The counties of Green Lake and Waushara shall constitute
6 an assembly district.
- 7 (17) The counties of Rusk, Sawyer and Washburn shall constitute
8 an assembly district.
- 9 (18) BROWN COUNTY. (a) *The towns of Pittsfield and Suamico;*
10 *the village of Howard; that part of the village of Pulaski in Brown*
11 *county; and the third, sixth, thirteenth, fourteenth, fifteenth, six-*
12 *teenth, seventeenth, eighteenth, nineteenth, twentieth, twenty-first,*
13 *twenty-second, twenty-third and twenty-fourth wards of the city of*
14 *Green Bay shall constitute the first assembly district of Brown county.*
- 15 (b) ~~The towns~~ *town* of ~~Allouez~~ and ~~Preble~~; and the first, second,
16 *third, fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth, tenth, eleventh and ,*
17 *twelfth, eighteenth and twentieth* wards of the city of Green Bay shall
18 consitute the second assembly district of *Brown county.*
- 19 (c) ~~All the towns, villages and cities in the county, except the~~
20 ~~towns of Allouez and Preble and the city of Green Bay~~ *The towns*
21 *of Allouez, Ashwaubenon, Bellevue, De Pere, Eaton, Glenmore, Green*
22 *Bay, Hobart, Holland, Humboldt, Lawrence, Morrison, New Den-*
23 *mark, Rockland, Scott and Wrightstown; the villages of Denmark and*
24 *Wrightstown; and the city of De Pere shall constitute the third as-*
25 *sembly district of Brown county.*

Bill No. 575, S.

4

1 (19) DANE COUNTY. (a) The sixth, seventh, twelfth, fifteenth,
2 sixteenth, seventeenth and eighteenth wards of the city of Madison and
3 the village of Maple Bluff shall constitute the first district.

4 (b) The first, second, third, fourth, fifth, eighth, ninth and four-
5 tenth wards of the city of Madison shall constitute the second dis-
6 trict.

7 (c) The fifth, tenth, eleventh, thirteenth, nineteenth and twentieth
8 wards of the city of Madison and the village of Shorewood Hills shall
9 constitute the third district.

10 (d) The towns of Albion, Blooming Grove, Bristol, Burke, Christi-
11 ana, Cottage Grove, Deerfield, Dunkirk, Dunn, Medina, Pleasant
12 Springs, Rutland, Sun Prairie, Windsor and York; the villages of Cam-
13 bridge, Cottage Grove, Deerfield, DeForest, McFarland, Marshall,
14 Monona and Rockdale; the twenty-second ward of the city of Madison;
15 and the cities of Stoughton and Sun Prairie shall constitute the fourth
16 district.

17 (e) The towns of Black Earth, Berry, Blue Mounds, Cross Plains,
18 Dane, Fitchburg, Madison, Mazomanie, Middleton, Montrose, Oregon,
19 Perry, Primrose, Roxbury, Springdale, Springfield, Vermont, Verona,
20 Vienna and Westport; and the villages of Black Earth, Blue Mounds,
21 that part of the villages of Belleville and Brooklyn in Dane county,
22 and the villages of Cross Plains, Dane, Maple Bluff, Mazomanie,
23 Middleton, Mt. Horeb, Oregon, Shorewood Hills, Verona and Wau-
24 nakee; the city of Middleton and the twenty-first ward of the city of
25 Madison shall constitute the fifth district.

Bill No. 575, S.

5

1 DOUGLAS COUNTY. The fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, eighth,
2 ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, fourteenth, fifteenth
3 and sixteenth wards of the city of Superior shall constitute the
4 first district.

5 The towns of Amnicon, Bennett, Brule, Cloverland, Dairyland,
6 Gordon, Hawthorne, Highland, Lakeside, Maple, Oakland, Park-
7 land, Solon Springs, Summit, Superior and Waseott; the villages
8 of Lake Nebagamon, Oliver, Poplar, Solon Springs and Superior;
9 and the first, second, third, seventeenth, eighteenth, nineteenth
10 and twentieth wards of the city of Superior shall constitute the
11 second district.

12 (21) EAU CLAIRE COUNTY. (a) The first, second, third, fourth,
13 fifth, sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth, tenth and thirteenth wards of the
14 city of Eau Claire shall constitute the first assembly district of Eau
15 Claire county.

16 (b) All the towns and villages of the county; and the cities of
17 Altoona and Augusta; and the fourth, eleventh, twelfth, fourteenth
18 and fifteenth wards of the city of Eau Claire shall constitute the
19 second assembly district of Eau Claire county.

20 (22) FOND DU LAC COUNTY. (a) The towns of Empire and
21 Fond du Lac, the village of North Fond du Lac and the city of Fond
22 du Lac shall constitute the first assembly district of Fond du Lac
23 county.

24 (b) The towns of Alto, Ashford, Auburn, Byron, Calumet, Eden,
25 Eldorado, Empire, Forest, Friedship, Lamartine, Marshfield, Meto-
26 men, Oakfield, Osceola, Ripon, Rosendale, Springvale, Taycheedah

Bill No. 575, S.

6

1 and Waupun; the villages of Brandon, Campbellsport, Eden, Fair-
2 water, *North Fond du Lac*, Oakfield, Rosendale and St. Cloud; the city
3 of Ripon; and ~~the fifth and sixth wards that part of the city of Wau-~~
4 ~~pun in Fond du Lac county~~ shall constitute the second *assembly* district
5 of *Fond du Lac county*.

6 (23) KENOSHA COUNTY. (a) The first, second, third, seventh,
7 eighth, ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, *fifteenth*, sixteenth,
8 ~~and seventeenth and eighteenth~~ wards of the city of Kenosha shall
9 constitute the first *assembly* district of *Kenosha county*.

10 (b) The towns of Brighton, Bristol, Paris, Pleasant Prairie, Ran-
11 dall, Salem, ~~Somers~~ and Wheatland; the villages of *Paddock Lake*,
12 Silver Lake and Twin Lakes; and the fourth, fifth, sixth, ~~and four-~~
13 ~~teenth, fifteenth and eighteenth~~ wards of the city of Kenosha shall
14 constitute the second *assembly* district of *Kenosha county*.

15 (24) LA CROSSE COUNTY. (a) The first, second, third, fourth,
16 fifth, ~~sixth~~, seventh, ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, four-
17 teenth, *fifteenth*, sixteenth, *seventeenth*, nineteenth and twentieth
18 wards of the city of La Crosse, ~~as such wards existed on August~~
19 ~~17, 1951~~, shall constitute the first *assembly* district of *La Crosse*
20 *County*.

21 (b) The ~~sixth~~, eighth, ~~seventeenth~~, eighteenth and twenty-first
22 wards of the city of La Crosse, ~~as such wards existed on August 17,~~
23 ~~1951~~, and all that part of the county outside the city of La Crosse shall
24 constitute the second *assembly* district of *La Crosse county*.

Bill No. 575, S.

7

1 (25) MANITOWOC COUNTY. (a) The towns of Manitowoc, Mani-
2 towoc Rapids and Newton and the city of Manitowoc shall constitute
3 the first *assembly* district of *Manitowoc county*.

4 (b) The towns of Cato, Centerville, Cooperstown, Eaton, Franklin,
5 Gibson, Kossuth, Liberty, Maple Grove, Meeme, Mishicot, Rockland,
6 Schleswig, Two Creeks and Two Rivers; the villages of Cleveland,
7 *Francis Creek*, Mishicot, Reedsville, St. Nazianz, Valders and White-
8 law; and that part of the city of Kiel in Manitowoc county and the
9 city of Two Rivers shall constitute the second *assembly* district of
10 *Manitowoc county*.

11 (26) MARATHON COUNTY. (a) The towns of Bergen, Berlin,
12 Bern, Bevent, Brighton, Cassel, Cleveland, Day, Easton, Eau Pleaine,
13 Elderon, Emmet, Frankfort, Franzen, Green Valley, Guenther, Halsey,
14 Hamburg, Harrison, Hewitt, Holton, Hull, Johnson, Knowlton, Kron-
15 enwetter, McMillan, Marathon, Mosinee, Norrie, Plover, Reid, Rib
16 Falls, Rib Mountain, Rietbrock, Spencer, Stettin and Wien; that part
17 of Abbotsford village in Marathon county and the village of Athens,
18 Edgar, Elderon, Fenwood, Hatley, Marathon, Spencer, Stratford and
19 that part of Unity village in Marathon county; that part of the city
20 *cities* of Colby and *Marshfield* in Marathon county and the city of Mos-
21 inee shall constitute the first *assembly* district of *Marathon county*.

22 (b) The towns of Maine, Ringle, Texas, Wausau and Weston; the
23 villages of Brokaw and Rothschild, and the cities of Schofield and
24 Wausau shall constitute the second *assembly* district of *Marathon*
25 *county*.

Bill No. 575, S.

8

1 (27) MILWAUKEE COUNTY. (a) The first ward of the city of
 2 Milwaukee shall constitute the first *assembly* district of *Milwaukee*
 3 *county*.
 4 (b) The ~~fourth~~ villages of Brown Deer, Fox Point and River Hills;
 5 that part of the village of Bayside in Milwaukee county; and the sec-
 6 ond ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the ~~fourth~~ second
 7 assembly district of *Milwaukee county*.
 8 (c) The third ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the
 9 third *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 10 (d) The ~~second~~ fourth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall consti-
 11 tute the ~~second~~ fourth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 12 (e) The fifth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the
 13 fifth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 14 (f) The sixth ward of the city of Milwaukee; the city of St. Francis;
 15 and the first ward of the city of Cudahy shall constitute the sixth as-
 16 sembly district of *Milwaukee county*.
 17 (g) The seventh ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the
 18 seventh *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 19 (h) The eighth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the
 20 eighth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 21 (i) The ninth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the
 22 ninth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 23 (j) The tenth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the
 24 tenth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 25 (k) The eleventh ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the
 26 eleventh *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.

9

Bill No. 575, S.

1 (L) The twelfth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the
 2 twelfth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 3 (m) The thirteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute
 4 the thirteenth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 5 (n) The fourteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute
 6 the fourteenth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 7 (o) The fifteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute
 8 the fifteenth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 9 (p) The sixteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute
 10 the sixteenth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 10a (q) The seventeenth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute
 10b the seventeenth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 11 (r) The eighteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute
 12 the eighteenth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 13 (s) The villages of Bayside, Brown Deer, Fox Point, River Hills,
 14 Shorewood and Whitefish Bay, and the city of Glendale and the
 15 ~~twentieth~~ ward of the city of Milwaukee shall constitute the nine-
 16 tenth *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 17 (t) The first, second, third, fourth, fifth ~~and~~, sixth and eighth wards
 18 of the city of Wauwatosa shall constitute the twentieth *assembly* dis-
 19 trict of *Milwaukee county*.
 20 (u) The seventh and eighth wards ward of the city of Wauwatosa
 21 and the third ward and fifth wards of the city of West Allis shall con-
 22 stitute the twenty-first *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.
 23 (v) The village of West Milwaukee; and the first, second and fourth
 24 wards of the city of West Allis shall constitute the twenty-second
 25 *assembly* district of *Milwaukee county*.

Bill No. 575, S.

10

1 (w) The villages of Greendale and Hales Corners; the cities of
 2 Franklin, and Greenfield, Oak Creek and the fifth ward of the city
 3 of West Allis shall constitute the twenty-third assembly district of
 4 Milwaukee county.

5 (x) The nineteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee and the cities
 6 of Cudahy, St. Francis Oak Creek and South Milwaukee; and the
 7 second, third, fourth and fifth wards of the city of South Milwaukee
 8 Cudahy shall constitute the twenty-fourth assembly district of Mil-
 9 waukee county.

10 (28) OUTAGAMIE COUNTY. (a) The towns of Center and Grand
 11 Chute and village of Kimberly and that part of the city of Appleton
 12 in Outagamie county shall constitute the first assembly district of
 13 Outagamie county.

14 (b) The All towns of Black Creek, Bevina, Buchanan, Cicero,
 15 Dale, Deer Creek, Ellington, Freedom, Greenville, Hortonia, Kau-
 16 kauna, Liberty, Maple Creek, Maine, Onida, Osborne, Seymour
 17 and Vandenbrook; the ; all villages of Black Creek Bear Creek,
 18 Combined Locks, Kimberly, Little Chute, Hortonville and Shioe-
 19 ton except Kimberly; and the cities of Kaukauna, Seymour and third
 20 ward that part of the city of New London in Outagamie county shall
 21 constitute the second assembly district of Outagamie county.

11

Bill No. 575, S.

1 (29) RACINE COUNTY. (a) The first, second, third, fourth, sixth,
 2 tenth and, eleventh and fourteenth wards and the second precinct of
 3 the fourteenth ward of the city of Racine shall constitute the first
 4 assembly district of Racine county.

5 (b) The fifth, seventh, eighth, ninth, twelfth, thirteenth and fif-
 6 teenth wards and the first precinct of the fourteenth ward of the
 7 city of Racine; and the village of North Bay shall constitute the sec-
 8 ond assembly district of Racine county.

9 (c) The towns of Burlington, Caledonia, Dover, Mount Pleasant,
 10 Norway, Raymond, Rochester, Waterword and Yorkville; the villages
 11 of North Bay, Rochester, Sturtevant, Union Grove, Waterford, Wind
 12 Point and Elmwood Park; and the city of Burlington shall constitute
 13 the third assembly district of Racine county.

14 (30) ROCK COUNTY. (a) The towns of Bradford, Clinton, Johns-
 15 town, Harmony, La Prairie and Lima; the village of Clinton; and
 16 the city of Jancsville shall constitute the first assembly district of
 17 Rock county.

18 (b) The towns of Avon, Beloit, Center, Fulton, Janesville, Milton,
 19 Magnolia, Newark, Plymouth, Porter, Rock, Spring Valley and Union;
 20 the villages of Footville, Milton, Milton Junction and Orfordville;
 21 and the cities of Edgerton and Evansville shall constitute the second
 22 assembly district of Rock county.

23 (c) The town of Turtle and the city of Beloit shall constitute the
 24 third assembly district of Rock county.

Bill No. 575, S.

12

1 (31) SHEBOYGAN COUNTY. (a) The city of Sheboygan shall
2 constitute the first *assembly* district of *Sheboygan county*.

3 (b) All the towns, cities and villages of the county except the city
4 of Sheboygan shall constitute the second *assembly* district of *Sheboy-*
5 *gan county*.

6 (33) WINNEBAGO COUNTY. (a) The first, second, third, fourth,
7 fifth, seventh, eighth, ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth and fifteenth
8 wards of the city of Oshkosh shall constitute the first *assembly* dis-
9 trict of *Winnebago county*.

10 (b) The towns of Algoma, Black Wolf, Clayton, Nekimi, Nepeuskun,
11 Omro, Oshkosh, Poygan, Rushford, Utica, Vinland, Winchester, Win-
12 neconne and Wolf River; the village of Winneconne; the city of Omro;
13 and the sixth, thirteenth, fourteenth and sixteenth wards of the city
14 of Oshkosh shall constitute the second *assembly* district of *Winne-*
15 *bago county*.

16 (c) The towns of Neenah and Menasha and the cities of Neenah
17 and Menasha shall constitute the third *assembly* district of *Winne-*
18 *bago county*.

19 (34) WOOD COUNTY. (a) The towns of Arpin, Auburndale, Cam-
20 eron, Cary, Hansen, Lincoln, Marshfield, Milladore, Richfield, Rock,
21 Rudolph, Sherry, Sigel and Wood; the villages of Auburndale, Milla-
22 dore, *Rudolph* and Vesper; and the cities of Marshfield and Pittsville
23 shall constitute the first *assembly* district of *Wood county*.

24 (b) The towns of Grand Rapids, Saratoga, Port Edwards, Cran-
25 moor, Remington, Dexter, Hiles and Seneca; the villages of Biron and

13

Bill No. 575, S.

1 Port Edwards; and the cities of Nekoosa and Wisconsin Rapids shall
2 constitute the second *assembly* district of *Wood county*.

3 4.02 SENATE DISTRICTS. Until there shall be is a new appor-
4 tionment, the senatorial districts of the state shall be constituted as
5 follows:

6 (1) The counties of *Door*, *Kewaunee* and *Manitowoc*, ~~*Kewaunee*~~
7 ~~and *Door*~~ shall constitute the first *senate* district.

8 (2) The county of *Calumet* and the second and third *assembly* dis-
9 tricts of *Brown county* shall constitute the second *senate* district.

10 (3) The eleventh, ~~twelfth~~ and fourteenth wards of the city of *Mil-*
11 ~~waukee~~ and *seventeenth assembly* districts of *Milwaukee county* shall
12 constitute the third *senate* district.

13 (4) The villages of ~~*Bayside*, *Brown Deer*, *Fox Point*, *River Hills*,~~
14 ~~*Shorewood* and *Whitefish Bay*~~; the city of *Glendale* and the first,
15 ~~eighteenth~~ second and ~~twentieth~~ wards of the city *nineteenth assem-*
16 *bly* districts of *Milwaukee county* shall constitute the fourth *senate*
17 district.

18 (5) The fifth ~~seventh~~, ninth and fifteenth wards of the city *assem-*
19 *bly* districts of *Milwaukee county* shall constitute the fifth *senate*
20 district.

21 (6) The ~~seventh~~ fifth, tenth and thirteenth wards of the city of
22 *assembly* districts of *Milwaukee county* shall constitute the sixth *sen-*
23 *ate* district.

24 (7) The villages of *Greendale* and *Hales Corners*; the cities of
25 ~~*Cudahy*, *Franklin*, *Greenfield*, *Oak Creek*, *St. Francis* and *South*~~

Bill No. 575, S.

14

1 Milwaukee, the seventeenth and nineteenth wards of the city of
 2 Milwaukee and the fifth ward of the city of West Allis sixth,
 3 twenty-third and twenty-fourth assembly districts of Milwaukee
 4 county shall constitute the seventh senate district.

5 (8) The village of West Milwaukee, the city of Wauwatosa and
 6 the first, second, third and fourth wards of the city of West Allis
 7 twentieth, twenty-first and twenty-second assembly districts of Mil-
 8 waukee county shall constitute the eighth senate district.

9 (9) The second, third and sixth wards of the city, fourth and
 10 eighteenth assembly districts of Milwaukee county shall constitute
 11 the ninth senate district.

12 (10) The counties of Buffalo, Dunn, Pepin, Pierce and St. Croix
 13 shall constitute the tenth senate district.

14 (11) The fourth, eighth, twelfth and sixteenth wards of the city
 15 assembly districts of Milwaukee county shall constitute the eleventh
 16 senate district.

17 (12) The counties of Iron, Vilas, Price, Oneida, Lincoln, Langlade
 18 and Taylor shall constitute the twelfth senate district.

19 (13) The counties of Dodge and Washington shall constitute the
 20 thirteenth senate district.

21 (14) The counties of Outagamie and Waupaca shall constitute the
 22 fourteenth senate district.

23 (15) The county of Rock shall constitute the fifteenth senate dis-
 24 trict.

15

Bill No. 575, S.

1 (16) The towns, villages and cities of Stoughton and Sun Prairie
 2 and the twenty-first ward of the city of Madison in the county of
 3 Jefferson and the fourth and fifth assembly districts of Dane county
 4 shall constitute the sixteenth senate district.

5 (17) The counties of Grant, Green, Iowa, and Lafayette and Green
 6 shall constitute the seventeenth senate district.

7 (18) The counties of Fond du Lac, Waushara and Green Lake and
 8 Waushara shall constitute the eighteenth senate district.

9 (19) The counties of Calumet and county of Winnebago shall con-
 10 stitute the nineteenth senate district.

11 (20) The counties of Ozaukee and Sheboygan shall constitute the
 12 twentieth senate district.

13 (21) The county of Racine shall constitute the twenty-first senate
 14 district.

15 (22) The counties of Kenosha and Walworth shall constitute the
 16 twenty-second senate district.

17 (23) The counties of Barron, Burnett, Douglas and Washburn,
 18 Sawyer and Hask Polk shall constitute the twenty-third senate dis-
 19 trict.

20 (24) The counties of Clark, Portage and Wood shall constitute
 21 the twenty-fourth senate district.

22 (25) The counties of Ashland, Douglas, Bayfield, Chippewa, Rusk,
 23 Sawyer and Washburn shall constitute the twenty-fifth senate district.

24 (26) The city of Madison, except the twenty-first ward, first, sec-

Bill No. 575, S.

16

1 *ond and third assembly districts of Dane county* shall constitute the
2 twenty-sixth *senate* district.

3 (27) *The counties of Columbia, Crawford, Richland and Sauk shall*
4 constitute the twenty-seventh *senate* district.

5 (28) The counties of ~~Chippewa~~ Clark and Eau Claire shall consti-
6 tute the twenty-eighth *senate* district.

7 (29) The counties of Marathon, Menominee and Shawano shall con-
8 stitute the twenty-ninth *senate* district.

9 (30) The counties of Florence, Forest, ~~Langlade~~, Marinette and
10 Oconto; and the first assembly district of Brown county shall consti-
11 tute the thirtieth *senate* district.

12 (31) The counties of Adams, Juneau, Marquette, Monroe and Ver-
13 non shall constitute the thirty-first *senate* district.

14 (32) The counties of Jackson, La Crosse and Trempealeau shall
15 constitute the thirty-second *senate* district.

16 (33) The ~~counties of Jefferson and~~ county of Waukesha shall con-
17 stitute the thirty-third *senate* district.

18 SECTION 1a. 4.01 (Dodge and Waukesha counties) of the statutes
19 are repealed and recreated to read:

20 (20) DODGE COUNTY. (a) The towns of Ashippun, Calamus,
21 Clyman, Elba, Emmet, Herman, Hubbard, Hustisford, Lebanon, Le-
22 roy, Lomira, Portland, Rubicon, Shields, Theresa and Williamstown;
23 the villages of Brownsville, Clyman, Hustisford, Kekoskee, Lomira,
24 Neosho, Iron Ridge and Theresa; cities of Horicon and Mayville and

17

Bill No. 575, S.

1 that part of the city of Watertown in Dodge county shall constitute
2 the first assembly district of Dodge county.

3 (b) The towns of Beaver Dam, Burnett, Chester, Fox Lake, Lowell,
4 Oak Grove, Trenton and Westford; the villages of Lowell, Reeseville
5 and that part of the village of Randolph in Dodge county; the cities
6 of Beaver Dam, Fox Lake, Juneau and that part of the city of Waupun
7 in Dodge county shall constitute the second assembly district of Dodge
8 county.

9 (32) WAUKESHA COUNTY. (a) The towns of Brookfield and
10 Pewaukee; the villages of Butler, Elm Grove and Pewaukee; the city
11 of Brookfield and the first ward of the city of Waukesha shall consti-
12 tute the first assembly district of Waukesha county.

13 (b) The towns of Lisbon, Merton and Oconomowoc; the villages of
14 Chenequa, Hartland, Lac La Belle, Lannon, Menomonee Falls, Merton
15 and Sussex; and the city of Oconomowoc shall constitute the second
16 assembly district of Waukesha county.

17 (c) The towns of Delafield, Genesee and Waukesha; the villages of
18 Nashotah, North Prairie and Wales; the city of Delafield and all of
19 the city of Waukesha except the first ward shall constitute the third
20 assembly district of Waukesha county.

21 (d) The towns of Eagle, Mukwonago, Muskego, Ottawa, Summit
22 and Vernon; the villages of Big Bend, Dousman, Eagle, Mukwonago
23 and Oconomowoc Lake; and the city of New Berlin shall constitute
24 the fourth assembly district of Waukesha county.

Bill No. 575, S.

18

1 SECTION 2. 4.04 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

2 4.04 MILWAUKEE COUNTY WARDS. It being and the legisla-
3 ture hereby declaring it to be a matter of state-wide concern that the
4 seats in the assembly be apportioned equitably and the city council
5 of the city of Milwaukee having failed to establish wards which would
6 make possible the accomplishment of an equitable reapportionment,
7 the legislature provides that the following plan of ward organization
8 for the city of Milwaukee is established.

9 (1) The first ward embraces that part of said city bounded by a
10 line commencing at the intersection of an east boundary of said city
11 and the center line of W. Silver Spring road; thence west along the
12 center line of W. Silver Spring road to a point in the center line of
13 N. 35th street; thence south along the center line of N. 35th street and
14 the center line of N. 35th street extended and the center line of N. 35th
15 street to a point in the center line of W. Townsend street; thence east
16 along the center line of W. Townsend street to the center line of N.
17 27th street; thence north along the center line of N. 27th street to the
18 center line of W. Keefe avenue; thence east along the center line of
19 W. Keefe avenue and E. Keefe avenue to the boundary line of said
20 city; thence along a generally northerly and westerly direction along
21 said city limits to the point of commencement.

22 (2) The second ward embraces all that part of said city bounded
23 by a line commencing at a point in the western boundary of Milwaukee
24 county at a point south of W. Hampton avenue where the limits of the
25 said city runs east and west; thence east along said city limits to a

19

Bill No. 575, S.

1 point in the center line of Swan boulevard; thence northerly and north
2 along the center line of Swan boulevard and N. 91st street to the cen-
3 ter line of W. Villard avenue extended; thence east along the center
4 line of W. Villard avenue extended and W. Villard avenue to the cen-
5 ter line of N. 76th street; thence north along the center line of N. 76th
6 street to the center line of W. Mill road; thence east along the center
7 line of W. Mill road to the said city limits; thence northerly, westerly
8 southerly, northerly, easterly, northerly, westerly and southerly along
9 the said limits to the point of commencement.

10 (3) The third ward embraces all that part of said city bounded by
11 a line commencing at a point of intersection of the center line of the
12 Milwaukee river and the center line of E. Edgewood avenue extended,
13 said E. Edgewood avenue being a north limits of said city; thence
14 east along the center line of E. Edgewood avenue extended and the
15 center line of E. Edgewood avenue to the said city limits being also
16 the shore of Lake Michigan; thence southerly along the city limits
17 and along the shore of Lake Michigan to a point where the center line
18 of the Milwaukee river enters Lake Michigan, which is also the east-
19 erly city limits of said city; thence westerly and northerly along the
20 center line of said Milwaukee river to the intersection of the center
21 line of E. Pleasant street extended; thence east along the center line
22 of E. Pleasant street extended and the center line of E. Pleasant street
23 and the center line of E. Pleasant street extended to the center line of
24 Farwell avenue; thence northeasterly along the center line of Farwell
25 avenue to the center line of Warren avenue extended; thence north

Bill No. 575, S.

20

1 along the center line of Warren avenue extended and the center line
2 of Warren avenue; thence northeast along the center line of Warren
3 avenue to the center line of Boylston street; thence west along the
4 center line of Boylston street and Boylston street extended to the
5 center line of the Milwaukee river; thence easterly and northerly along
6 the center line of the Milwaukee river to the place of commencement.

7 (4) The fourth ward embraces that part of said city bounded by
8 a line commencing at a point of intersection of the center line of
9 W. Garfield avenue with N. 3rd Street; thence west along the center
10 line of W. Garfield avenue to the center line of N. 12th street; thence
11 south along the center line of N. 12th street to the center line of
12 W. Lloyd street; thence west along the center line of W. Lloyd street
13 to the center line of N. 16th street; thence south along the center
14 line of N. 16th street and S. 16th street to the center line of W. Scott
15 street; thence east along the center line of W. Scott street to the center
16 line of S. 1st street; thence north along the center line of S. 1st street
17 to the center line of E. Florida street; thence east along the center
18 line of E. Florida street to the center line of the Milwaukee river;
19 thence northwesterly and northerly along the center line of the Mil-
20 waukee river to a point of intersection with the center line of E. Pleas-
21 ant street extended westerly to the center line of the Milwaukee river;
22 thence due west to the center line of N. 3rd street; thence north along
23 the center line of N. 3rd street to the point of commencement.

24 (5) The fifth ward embraces that part of said city bounded by a
25 line commencing at the point of intersection of the west boundary of

21

Bill No. 575, S.

1 said city, which is also the center line of N. 60th street at the point of
2 the center line of W. Vliet street; thence easterly along the center
3 line of W. Vliet street to the center line of N. 47th street; thence north
4 along the center line of N. 47th street to the center line of W. Lloyd
5 street; thence east along the center line of W. Lloyd street, W. Lisbon
6 avenue and W. Brown street to the center line of N. 35th street; thence
7 north along the center line of N. 35th street to the center line of W.
8 Locust street; thence west along the center line of W. Locust street to
9 the center line of N. 46th street; thence north along the center line
10 of N. 46th street to the center line of W. Keefe avenue; thence west
11 along the center line of W. Keefe avenue to the center line of N. 60th
12 street; thence south along the center line of N. 60th street to the center
13 line of W. Center street; thence west along the center line of W. Cen-
14 ter street to the city limits of said city; thence southerly, easterly and
15 southerly along the said city limits to the point of commencement.

16 (6) The sixth ward embraces that part of said city bounded by a
17 line commencing at the point of the intersection of S. Clement ave-
18 nue with the limits of said city; thence about one-half block northwest
19 to the center line of E. Howard avenue; thence west along the center
20 line of E. Howard avenue and W. Howard avenue to the center line
21 of S. 6th street; thence north along the center line of S. 6th street
22 to the center line of W. Morgan avenue; thence west along the center
23 line of W. Morgan avenue to the center line of S. 27th street; thence
24 south along the center line of S. 27th street to the said city limits;

Bill No. 575, S.

22

1 thence southerly, easterly and northerly along the said city limits to
2 the point of commencement.

3 (7) The seventh ward embraces all that part of said city bounded
4 by a line commencing at the intersection of N. 35th street and W.
5 Hampton avenue; thence west along the center line of W. Hampton
6 avenue to the center line of N. 68th street; thence south along the
7 center line of N. 68th street to the center line of W. Ruby street;
8 thence west along the center line of W. Ruby street to the center line
9 of N. 76th street; thence south along the center line of N. 76th street
10 to the center line of W. Appleton avenue; thence southeasterly along
11 the center line of W. Appleton avenue to the center line of W. Keefe
12 avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Keefe avenue to the
13 center line of N. 46th street; thence south along the center line of
14 N. 46th street to the center line of W. Locust street; thence east along
15 the center line of W. Locust street to the center line of N. 27th street;
16 thence north along the center line of N. 27th street to the center line
17 of W. Townsend street; thence west along the center line of W. Town-
18 send street to the center line of N. 35th street; thence north along
19 the center line of N. 35th street and the center line of N. 35th street
20 extended to the center line of W. Hampton avenue and the point of
21 commencement.

22 (8) The eighth ward embraces that part of said city bounded by
23 a line commencing at the point of intersection of N. 16th street and
24 W. Walnut street; thence west along the center line of W. Walnut
25 street to the center line of N. 29th street; thence south along the cen-

Bill No. 575, S.

23

1 ter line of N. 29th street and the center line of N. 29th street extended
2 to the center line of W. Canal street; thence west along the center
3 line of W. Canal street and W. Canal street extended to the center
4 line of S. 44th street; thence southerly along the center line of S. 44th
5 street to a point in the city limits of said city; thence east and south
6 along said city limits to a point where the said city limits intersects
7 with W. Greenfield avenue; thence east along the center line of W.
8 Greenfield avenue to the center line of S. 24th street; thence north
9 along the center line of S. 24th street to the center line of W. Scott
10 street; thence east along the center line of W. Scott street to the center
11 line of S. 16th street; thence north along the center line of S. 16th
12 street and N. 16th street to the center line of W. Walnut street and
13 the point of commencement.

14 (9) The ninth ward embraces that part of said city bounded by a
15 line commencing at the point of intersection of the center line of W.
16 Mill road with the east limits of said city; thence west along the cen-
17 ter line of W. Mill road to the center line of N. 76th street; thence
18 south along the center line of N. 76th street to the center line of W.
19 Ruby avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Ruby avenue to
20 the center line of N. 68th street; thence north along the center line of
21 N. 68th street to the center line of W. Hampton avenue; thence west
22 along the center line of W. Hampton avenue to the center line of
23 N. 35th street; thence north along the center line of N. 35th street
24 to the center line of W. Silver Spring road; thence east along the
25 center line of W. Silver Spring road to the east limits of said city;

Bill No. 575, S.

24

1 thence northerly along the east limits of said city to the point of
2 commencement.

3 (10) The tenth ward embraces that part of said city bounded by
4 a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center line of
5 W. Keefe avenue and N. 20th street; thence west along W. Keefe ave-
6 nue to the center line of N. 27th street; thence south along the center
7 line of N. 27th street to the center line of W. Locust street; thence
8 west along the center line of W. Locust street to the center line of
9 N. 35th street; thence south along the center line of N. 35th street
10 to the center line of W. Galena street; thence east on W. Galena street
11 to the center line of N. 29th street; thence north along the center line
12 of N. 29th street to the center line of W. Walnut street; thence east
13 along the center line of W. Walnut street to the center line of N. 16th
14 street; thence north along the center line of N. 16th street to the cen-
15 ter line of W. Lloyd street; thence west along the center line of W.
16 Lloyd street to the center line of N. 18th street; thence north along
17 the center line of N. 18th street to the center line of W. Wright street;
18 thence west along the center line of W. Wright street to the center
19 line of N. 20th street; thence north along the center line of N. 20th
20 street to the center line of W. Keefe avenue and the point of
21 commencement.

22 (11) The eleventh ward embraces that part of said city bounded
23 by a line commencing at the point where the center line of S. 27th
24 street intersects the city limits at W. Howard avenue; thence north
25 along the center line of said N. 27th street to the center line of W.

Bill No. 575, S.

25

1 Dakota street; thence west along the center line of W. Dakota street
2 to the center line of S. 35th street; thence north along the center line
3 of S. 35th street to the center line of W. Lincoln avenue; thence west
4 about $1\frac{1}{2}$ blocks along the center line of W. Lincoln avenue to the said
5 city limits; thence generally in a westerly, southerly and easterly di-
6 rection along the said city limits to the center line of S. 27th street
7 and to the point of commencement.

8 (12) The twelfth ward embraces that part of said city bounded by
9 a line commencing at a point at the intersection of S. 1st street and
10 W. Scott street; thence west along the center line of W. Scott street
11 to the center line of S. 24th street; thence south along the center line
12 of S. 24th street one block to the center line of W. Greenfield avenue;
13 thence west along the center line of W. Greenfield avenue to the west
14 city limits; thence generally in a southerly direction along the said
15 city limits to the center line of W. Rogers street; thence east along
16 the center line of W. Rogers street to the center line of Muskego ave-
17 nue; thence southwesterly along the center line of S. Muskego avenue
18 one block to the center line of W. Becher street; thence east along
19 the center line of W. Becher street to the center line of S. 1st street;
20 thence north along the center line of S. 1st street to the center line
21 of W. Scott street and the point of commencement.

22 (13) The thirteenth ward embraces that part of said city com-
23 mencing at the point of the intersection of N. 6th street and W. Keefe
24 avenue; thence west along the center line of W. Keefe avenue to the
25 center line of N. 20th street; thence south along the center line of

Bill No. 575, S.

26

1 N. 20th street to the center line of W. Wright street; thence east
2 along the center line of W. Wright street to the center line of N. 18th
3 street; thence south along the center line of N. 18th street to the cen-
4 ter line of W. Lloyd street; thence east along the center line of W.
5 Lloyd street to the center line of N. 12th street; thence north along
6 the center line of N. 12th street to the center line of W. Garfield ave-
7 nue; thence east along the center line of W. Garfield avenue to the
8 center line of N. 8rd street; thence north along the center line of N.
9 3rd street to the center line of W. Locust street, thence west along the
10 center line of W. Locust street to the center line of N. 5th street;
11 thence north along the center line of N. 5th street to the center line of
12 W. Concordia avenue; thence west one block along the center line of
13 W. Concordia avenue to the center line of N. 6th street; thence north
14 one block along the center line of N. 6th street to the center line of
15 W. Keefe avenue and the point of commencement.

16 (14) The fourteenth ward embraces that part of said city bounded
17 by a line commencing at a point of the intersection of S. 6th street
18 and W. Becher street; thence west along the center line of W. Becher
19 street to the center line of Muskego avenue; thence northeasterly
20 about one block to the center line of W. Rogers street; thence west
21 along the center line of W. Rogers street to the city limits; thence
22 south along said city limits to the center line of W. Lincoln avenue;
23 thence east about $1\frac{1}{2}$ blocks along the center line of W. Lincoln ave-
24 nue to the center line of S. 35th street; thence south along the center
25 line of S. 35th street to the center line of W. Dakota street; thence

27

Bill No. 575, S.

1 east along the center line of W. Dakota street to the center line of S.
2 27th street; thence south along the center line of S. 27th street to the
3 center line of W. Morgan avenue; thence east along the center line of
4 W. Morgan avenue to the center line of S. 6th street; thence north
5 along the center line of S. 6th street to the center line of W. Becher
6 street and the point of commencement.

7 (15) The fifteenth ward embraces that part of said city bounded by
8 a line commencing at a point where the center line of Swan boulevard
9 intersects the boundary of said city south of W. Hampton avenue;
10 thence northeasterly and north along the center line of Swan boule-
11 vard and N. 91st street to a point in the center line of W. Villard
12 avenue extended; thence east along the center line of W. Villard ave-
13 nue extended and W. Villard avenue to the center line of N. 76th
14 street; thence south along the center line of N. 76th street to the cen-
15 ter line of W. Appleton avenue; thence southeasterly along the center
16 line of W. Appleton avenue to the center line of W. Keefe avenue;
17 thence east along the center line of W. Keefe avenue to the center line
18 of N. 60th street; thence south along the center line of N. 60th street
19 to the center line of W. Center street; thence west along the center
20 line of W. Center street about $1\frac{1}{2}$ blocks to a point where the limits
21 of the city of Milwaukee and the city of Wauwatosa meet; thence
22 along said city limits westerly and northerly to the point of
23 commencement.

24 (16) The sixteenth ward embraces that part of said city bounded
25 by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center line

Bill No. 575, S.

28

1 of W. Vliet street and the city limits; thence east along the center line
 2 of W. Vliet street to the center line of N. 47th street; thence north
 3 along the center line of N. 47th street to the center line of W. Lloyd
 4 street; thence east along the center line of W. Lloyd street to the cen-
 5 ter line of W. Lisbon avenue; thence east along the center line of W.
 6 Lisbon avenue to the center line of W. Brown street; thence east along
 7 the center line of W. Brown street to the center line of N. 35th street;
 8 thence south along the center line of N. 35th street to the center line
 9 of W. Galena street; thence east along the center line of W. Galena
 10 street to the center line of N. 29th street; thence south along the cen-
 11 ter line of N. 29th street (said center line setting over to the west on
 12 W. Juneau avenue and back to the east on W. Wisconsin avenue) and
 13 the center line of N. 29th street extended to the center line of W. Canal
 14 street; thence west along the center line of W. Canal street and W.
 15 Canal street extended to the center line of S. 44th street; thence south
 16 along the center line of S. 44th street to the limits of said city; thence
 17 westerly, northerly, easterly and northerly along the city limits to the
 18 point of commencement.

19 (17) The seventeenth ward embraces that part of said city bounded
 20 by a line commencing at the center line of the mouth of the Milwaukee
 21 river where said Milwaukee river intersects with the east limits of
 22 said city; thence westerly and northwesterly along the center line of
 23 said Milwaukee river to a point where the said Milwaukee river in-
 24 tersects with the center line of E. Florida street extended; thence west
 25 along the center line of E. Florida street extended and E. Florida

29

Bill No. 575, S.

1 street to the center line of S. 1st street; thence south along the center
 2 line of S. 1st street to the center line of W. Becher street; thence west
 3 along the center line of W. Becher street to the center line of S. 6th
 4 street; thence south along the center line of S. 6th street to the center
 5 line of W. Howard avenue; thence east along the center line of W.
 6 Howard avenue and E. Howard avenue to the center line of S. Clement
 7 avenue; thence southeasterly along the center line of S. Clement ave-
 8 nue about one block to the limits of said city; thence easterly, north-
 9 westerly and northerly along the limits of said city to the point of
 10 commencement.

11 (18) The eighteenth ward shall embrace that part of said city
 12 bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the
 13 center line of E. Keefe avenue with the center line of the Milwaukee
 14 river; thence west along the center line of E. Keefe avenue and W.
 15 Keefe avenue to the center line of N. 6th street; thence south one block
 16 along the center line of N. 6th street to the center line of W. Concordia
 17 avenue; thence east one block along the center line of W. Concordia
 18 avenue to the center line of N. 5th street; thence south along the cen-
 19 ter line of N. 5th street to the center line of W. Locust street; thence
 20 east 2 blocks along the center line of W. Locust street to the center
 21 line of N. 3rd street; thence south along the center line of N. 3rd street
 22 to a point due west from the center line of E. Pleasant street extended
 23 to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence east along the said
 24 line to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence east along the
 25 center line of E. Pleasant street extended, E. Pleasant street, and

Bill No. 575, S.

30

1 E. Pleasant street extended to the center line of Farwell avenue;
2 thence northeasterly along the center line of Farwell avenue to the
3 center line of Warren avenue extended; thence north along the center
4 line of Warren avenue extended and the center line of Warren ave-
5 nue; thence northeast along the center line of Warren avenue to the
6 center line of Boylston street; thence west along the center line of
7 Boylston street to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence
8 easterly and northerly along the center line of the Milwaukee river to
9 the place of commencement.

(End)

STATE OF WISCONSIN

IN SENATE

SUBSTITUTE AMENDMENT NO. 1, S., TO BILL NO. 575, S.

June 3, 1963—Offered by Senator KNOWLES.

1 To repeal and recreate chapter 4 of the statutes, relating to the re-
2 apportionment of the senate and assembly.

3 The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and
4 assembly, do enact as follows:

5 SECTION 1. Chapter 4 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to
6 read:

CHAPTER 4.

ASSEMBLY AND SENATE DISTRICTS.

9 4.01 STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES. (1) In order to minimize the
10 differences of population between the 100 assembly districts of the
11 state, and between the 33 senate districts of the state, legislative dis-
12 tricts are established in accordance with the final published results of
13 the 1960 federal census of Wisconsin and with due regard to the re-
14 quirements of the constitution of this state.

15 (2) For the assembly, the provisions of the Wisconsin constitution
16 require districts of utmost convenience to the people of the whole state,

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

684

and there were many, were his own. Like many of his contemporaries he was denied the benefit of a university education by lack of funds; yet, he knew his goals and made his way. He was only 15 years old when his father died and he was forced to leave school, from the ninth grade, to start supporting himself and contribute to the support of his mother. He worked on the railroad in various jobs and worked as a meat packer.

Harry J. Grant became a businessman when he returned to America from England, where he had worked as the representative of an American advertising company. A chance meeting on shipboard led to Grant's becoming manager of the American Viscose Company. His next step in the business world, as vice president of the Chicago advertising firm, O'Mara and Ormsbee, Inc., led to the acquaintance of Lucius W. Nieman, editor of the Milwaukee Journal. Mr. Grant was on the threshold of the newspaper world.

In 1916 Harry Johnston Grant was advertising manager of the Milwaukee Journal. Three years later he was vice president and treasurer of the company, a stockholder in the company, one of its 3 directors, and publisher of the Milwaukee Journal.

It has been said that in his half century of leading the Milwaukee Journal, Mr. Grant imbued the Journal with a set of standards amounting to a moral attitude, characterized by insistence on an editorial excellence and independence from pressures that might seek to influence a newspaper for personal gain. Under his leadership the Milwaukee Journal became known and respected, beyond the confines of Milwaukee County, as one of the leading newspapers in the middle west. The Milwaukee Journal is frequently cited for its "liberal" editorial policy—it was a "conservative" businessman who shaped this policy.

Mr. Grant became a patriarch among businessmen. As he, and the newspaper prospered, so did his employees. In 1935 Harry Grant developed the plan of employee ownership of the Milwaukee Journal Company, thus forestalling outside ownership of a Milwaukee institution. "The strength of an organization", Harry J. Grant has been quoted, "is in its human material. The biggest job of intelligent management is building people." He did not like to be referred to as "boss" by his employees, who called him "Mr. Grant". "That reminds me of Uncle Tom's Cabin and Simon Legree", Grant chided.

Mr. Grant had forceful and memorable convictions, when it came to editorial policy. He said: "We must have freedom . . . not to be willful, or bigoted, or swell headed . . . but so that the Journal can act entirely as it thinks best for the community. The Journal is above our frailties. The Journal's job is to serve the public. It can't be anything else." And another time: "The editorial columns express Journal opinions and strive to win people by marshalling facts and appealing to minds through logic rather than prejudice, emotions and hysteria."

For his achievements as a businessman, and for his dedication to journalism's best traditions, Mr. Grant was repeatedly honored by professional societies. In fact, Mr. Grant might be one of the few people of whom it can be said that they helped shape what have become the "best traditions."

The Wisconsin Legislature mourns his loss.

In view of the outstanding contributions by Harry Johnston Grant to the progress of Milwaukee city and county—and beyond these, the State of Wisconsin—be it

Resolved by the senate, the assembly concurring, That the Legislature express its great sorrow at the news of the passing of Harry Johnston Grant, and extends its heartfelt condolences to the surviving members of his family; and, be it further

Resolved, That duly attested copies of this resolution be transmitted to his survivors and to the Milwaukee Journal Company.

685

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

Jt. Res. No. 32, S.

Deposited September 3, 1963.

Published September 6, 1963.

No. 48, 1963

A JOINT RESOLUTION

To amend article VII, section 15, so as in effect to repeal said section; and to amend article VII, section 2, of the constitution, relating to abolishing the office of justice of the peace.

Resolved by the senate, the assembly concurring, That article VII, section 15 of the constitution be amended, so as in effect to repeal said section; and that article VII, section 2, of the constitution be amended to read:

(Article VII) Section 2. The judicial power of this state, both as to matters of law and equity, shall be vested in a supreme court, circuit courts, and courts of probate * * *. The legislature may also vest such jurisdiction as shall be deemed necessary in municipal courts, and *may authorize the establishment of* inferior courts in the several counties, *cities, villages or towns* with limited civil and criminal jurisdiction. Provided, that the jurisdiction which may be vested in municipal courts shall not exceed in their respective municipalities that of circuit courts in their respective circuits as prescribed in this constitution; and that the legislature shall provide as well for the election of judges of the municipal courts as of the judges of inferior courts, by the qualified electors of the respective jurisdictions. The term of office of the judges of the said municipal and inferior courts shall not be longer than that of the judges of the circuit courts.

SECTION 15. * * * Be it further

Resolved, That this proposed amendment be and hereby is referred to the legislature to be chosen at the next general election, and that the same be published for 3 months previous to the time of holding such election.

Jt. Res. No. 74, S.

No. 49, 1963

A JOINT RESOLUTION

Relating to the apportionment of the seats in the senate and assembly.

WHEREAS, the constitution of this state vests the power of legislative apportionment exclusively in the legislature; and

WHEREAS, the 1963 legislature establishes: Legislative districts in accordance with the final published results of the 1960 federal census of Wisconsin and with due regard to the requirements of the constitution of this state, in order to minimize the differences of population between the 100 assembly districts of the state, and between the 33 senate districts of the state; and

WHEREAS, for the assembly, the provisions of the Wisconsin constitution require districts of utmost convenience to the people of the whole state, which makes exact mathematical equality of population numbers impossible; and

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

686

WHEREAS, for the assembly county lines are held inviolable, assembly districts to consist of either a whole county, several whole counties, or several assembly districts placed wholly within a single county; and

WHEREAS, the territory of each assembly district is kept as compact as practicable; and

WHEREAS, the method of harmonic mean has been used to determine the number of assembly seats allocated to multi-assembly district counties; and

WHEREAS, for the senate, the provisions of the Wisconsin constitution require districts of the utmost convenience to the people of the whole state, which makes exact mathematical equality of population numbers impossible; and

WHEREAS, in establishing senate districts, assembly district lines are held inviolable, senate districts to consist of whole assembly districts, though not in all cases of whole counties; and

WHEREAS, no senate district exceeds by more than one-third the average population of all senate districts; and

WHEREAS, the territory of individual senate districts consists of contiguous assembly districts, convenient to the electors of the district; now, therefore, be it

Resolved by the senate, the assembly concurring. That until otherwise provided, the senate and assembly districts are established as follows:

SECTION 1. APPORTIONMENT OF ASSEMBLY. Thirty-six counties of low population are combined into 16 multi-county assembly districts, each with a population near the state-wide average for assembly districts. Nineteen counties of population near the state-wide average for assembly districts, or for geographic reasons prevented from being combined into multi-county assembly districts, are established as single-county assembly districts. The remaining 65 assembly seats are distributed among the remaining 17 counties in accordance with population.

(1) Each of these county combinations is an assembly district:

- (a) Adams-Juneau-Marquette;
- (b) Ashland-Bayfield;
- (c) Buffalo-Pepin-Pierce;
- (d) Burnett-Polk;
- (e) Crawford-Richland;
- (f) Door-Kewaunee;
- (g) Florence-Marinette;
- (h) Forest-Oconto;
- (i) Green Lake-Waushara;
- (j) Iowa-Lafayette;
- (k) Iron-Oneida-Vilas;
- (l) Jackson-Trempealeau;
- (m) Langlade-Lincoln;
- (n) Menominee-Shawano;
- (o) Price-Taylor;
- (p) Rusk-Sawyer-Washburn.

(2) Each of these counties is an assembly district, as determined by the method of harmonic mean:

- (a) Barron;
- (b) Calumet;
- (c) Chippewa;
- (d) Clark;
- (e) Columbia;
- (f) Douglas;
- (g) Dunn;
- (h) Grant;
- (i) Green;

687

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

- (j) Jefferson;
- (k) Monroe;
- (l) Ozaukee;
- (m) Portage;
- (n) St. Croix;
- (o) Sauk;
- (p) Vernon;
- (q) Walworth;
- (r) Washington;
- (s) Waupaca.

(3) Each of these counties contains several assembly districts, allocated according to the method of harmonic mean:

- (a) Brown county contains 3;
- (b) Dane county contains 5;
- (c) Dodge county contains 2;
- (d) Eau Claire county contains 2;
- (e) Fond du Lac county contains 2;
- (f) Kenosha county contains 2;
- (g) La Crosse county contains 2;
- (h) Manitowoc county contains 2;
- (i) Marathon county contains 2;
- (j) Milwaukee county contains 24;
- (k) Outagamie county contains 2;
- (l) Racine county contains 3;
- (m) Rock county contains 3;
- (n) Sheboygan county contains 2;
- (o) Waukesha county contains 4;
- (p) Winnebago county contains 3;
- (q) Wood county contains 2.

SECTION 2. DISTRICTING OF MULTI-ASSEMBLY DISTRICT COUNTIES. Within the 17 multi-assembly district counties, the boundaries of assembly districts are established along town and ward lines. It being, and the legislature hereby declaring it to be, a matter of state-wide concern, the legislature provides that the wards of the city of Milwaukee, for the purposes of this apportionment, are the wards established by section 4.05 of the statutes.

(1) BROWN COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The first, fourth, fifth, seventh, eighth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, fourteenth, fifteenth, seventeenth, eighteenth, nineteenth, twentieth and twenty-first wards of the city of Green Bay constitute the first assembly district of Brown county.

(b) The towns of Allouez, Bellevue, DePere, Eaton, Glenmore, Green Bay, Holland, Humboldt, Morrison, New Denmark, Rockland and Wrightstown; the villages of Denmark and Wrightstown; the city of DePere; and the second, third and sixth wards of the city of Green Bay constitute the second assembly district of Brown county.

(c) The towns of Ashwaubenon, Hobart, Lawrence, Pittsfield, Preble, Scott and Suamico; the villages of Howard and Pulaski; and the ninth, sixteenth, twenty-second, twenty-third and twenty-fourth wards of the city of Green Bay constitute the third assembly district of Brown county.

(2) DANE COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The third, seventh, twelfth, fifteenth, sixteenth, seventeenth, eighteenth and twenty-second wards of the city of Madison constitute the first assembly district of Dane county.

(b) The second, fourth, fifth, sixth, eighth, ninth and fourteenth wards of the city of Madison constitute the second assembly district of Dane county.

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

688

(c) The first, tenth, eleventh, thirteenth, nineteenth, twentieth and twenty-first wards of the city of Madison constitute the third assembly district of Dane county.

(d) The towns of Albion, Blooming Grove, Bristol, Burke, Christiana, Cottage Grove, Deerfield, Dunkirk, Dunn, Medina, Pleasant Springs, Rutland, Sun Prairie, Windsor and York; the villages of Cambridge, Cottage Grove, Deerfield, DeForest, McFarland, Marshall, Monona and Rockdale; and the cities of Stoughton and Sun Prairie constitute the fourth assembly district of Dane county.

(e) The towns of Black Earth, Berry, Blue Mounds, Cross Plains, Dane, Fitchburg, Madison, Mazomanie, Middleton, Montrose, Oregon, Perry, Primrose, Roxbury, Springdale, Springfield, Vermont, Verona, Vienna and Westport; and the villages of Black Earth, Blue Mounds; that part of the villages of Belleville and Brooklyn in Dane county, and the villages of Cross Plains, Dane, Maple Bluff, Mazomanie, Mt. Horeb, Oregon, Shorewood Hills, Verona and Waunakee; and the city of Middleton constitute the fifth assembly district of Dane county.

(3) DODGE COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The towns of Ashippun, Calamus, Clyman, Elba, Emmet, Herman, Hubbard, Hustisford, Lebanon, Leroy, Lomira, Portland, Rubicon, Shields, Theresa and Williamstown; the villages of Brownsville, Clyman, Hustisford, Kekoskee, Lomira, Neosho, Iron Ridge and Theresa; that part of the city of Watertown in Dodge county; and the cities of Horicon and Mayville constitute the first assembly district of Dodge county.

(b) The towns of Beaver Dam, Burnett, Chester, Fox Lake, Lowell, Oak Grove, Trenton and Westford; that part of the village of Randolph in Dodge county; the villages of Lowell and Reeseville; that part of the city of Waupun in Dodge county; and the cities of Beaver Dam, Fox Lake and Juneau constitute the second assembly district of Dodge county.

(4) EAU CLAIRE COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The first, second, third, fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, eighth, ninth, tenth and thirteenth wards of the city of Eau Claire constitute the first assembly district of Eau Claire county.

(b) All the towns and villages of the county; the cities of Altoona and Augusta; and the eleventh, twelfth, fourteenth and fifteenth wards of the city of Eau Claire constitute the second assembly district of Eau Claire county.

(5) FOND DU LAC COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The towns of Empire and Fond du Lac and the city of Fond du Lac constitute the first assembly district of Fond du Lac county.

(b) The towns of Alto, Ashford, Auburn, Byron, Calumet, Eden, Eldorado, Forest, Friendship, Lamartine, Marshfield, Metomen, Oakfield, Osceola, Ripon, Rosendale, Springvale, Taycheedah and Waupun; the villages of Brandon, Campbellsport, Eden, Fairwater, Mount Calvary, North Fond du Lac, Oakfield, Rosendale and St. Cloud; the city of Ripon; and that part of the city of Waupun in Fond du Lac county constitute the second assembly district of Fond du Lac county.

(6) KENOSHA COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The first, second, third, seventh, eighth, ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, fifteenth, sixteenth, seventeenth and eighteenth wards of the city of Kenosha constitute the first assembly district of Kenosha county.

(b) The towns of Brighton, Bristol, Paris, Pleasant Prairie, Randall, Salem, Somers and Wheatland; the villages of Paddock Lake, Silver Lake and Twin Lakes; and the fourth, fifth, sixth and fourteenth wards of the city of Kenosha constitute the second assembly district of Kenosha county.

(7) LA CROSSE COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The first, second, third, fourth, fifth, seventh, ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth, thirteenth, fourteenth, fifteenth, sixteenth, seventeenth, nineteenth and twentieth wards

689

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

of the city of La Crosse constitute the first assembly district of La Crosse county.

(b) The sixth, eighth, eighteenth and twenty-first wards of the city of La Crosse; and all that part of La Crosse county outside the city of La Crosse constitute the second assembly district of La Crosse county.

(8) MANITOWOC COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The towns of Manitowoc, Manitowoc Rapids and Newton; and the city of Manitowoc constitute the first assembly district of Manitowoc county.

(b) The towns of Cato, Centerville, Cooperstown, Eaton, Franklin, Gibson, Kossuth, Liberty, Maple Grove, Meeme, Mishicot, Rockland, Schleswig, Two Creeks and Two Rivers; the villages of Cleveland, Francis Creek, Mishicot, Reedsville, St. Nazianz, Valders and Whitelaw; that part of the city of Kiel in Manitowoc county; and the city of Two Rivers constitute the second assembly district of Manitowoc county.

(9) MARATHON COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The towns of Bergen, Berlin, Bern, Bevent, Brighton, Cassel, Cleveland, Day, Easton, Eau Pleine, Elderon, Emmet, Frankfort, Franzen, Green Valley, Guenther, Halsey, Hamburg, Harrison, Hewitt, Holton, Hull, Johnson, Knowlton, Kronenwetter, McMillan, Marathon, Mosinee, Norrie, Plover, Reid, Rib Falls, Rib Mountain, Rietbrock, Spencer, Stettin and Wien; that part of the villages of Abbotsford and Unity in Marathon county; the villages of Athens, Edgar, Elderon, Fenwood, Hatley, Marathon, Spencer and Stratford; that part of the cities of Colby and Marshfield in Marathon county; and the city of Mosinee constitute the first assembly district of Marathon county.

(b) The towns of Maine, Ringle, Texas, Wausau and Weston; the villages of Brokaw and Rothschild; and the cities of Schofield and Wausau constitute the second assembly district of Marathon county.

(10) MILWAUKEE COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The first ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the first assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(b) The villages of Brown Deer, Fox Point and River Hills; that part of the village of Bayside in Milwaukee county; and the second ward of the city of Milwaukee constitute the second assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(c) The third ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the third assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(d) The fourth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the fourth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(e) The fifth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the fifth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(f) The sixth ward of the city of Milwaukee; the city of St. Francis; and the first ward of the city of Cudahy constitute the sixth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(g) The seventh ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the seventh assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(h) The eighth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the eighth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(i) The ninth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the ninth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(j) The tenth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the tenth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(k) The eleventh ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the eleventh assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(l) The twelfth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the twelfth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(m) The thirteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the thirteenth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

690

(n) The fourteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the fourteenth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(o) The fifteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the fifteenth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(p) The sixteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the sixteenth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(q) The seventeenth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the seventeenth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(r) The eighteenth ward of the city of Milwaukee constitutes the eighteenth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(s) The villages of Shorewood and Whitefish Bay; and the city of Glendale constitute the nineteenth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(t) The first, second, third, fourth, fifth, sixth and eighth wards of the city of Wauwatosa constitute the twentieth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(u) The seventh ward of the city of Wauwatosa; and the third and fifth wards of the city of West Allis constitute the twenty-first assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(v) The village of West Milwaukee; and the first, second and fourth wards of the city of West Allis constitute the twenty-second assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(w) The villages of Greendale and Hales Corners; and the cities of Franklin and Greenfield constitute the twenty-third assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(x) The cities of Oak Creek and South Milwaukee; and the second, third, fourth and fifth wards of the city of Cudahy constitute the twenty-fourth assembly district of Milwaukee county.

(11) OUTAGAMIE COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The village of Kimberly; and that part of the city of Appleton in Outagamie county constitute the first assembly district of Outagamie county.

(b) All towns; all villages except Kimberly; that part of the city of New London in Outagamie county; and the cities of Kaukauna and Seymour constitute the second assembly district of Outagamie county.

(12) RACINE COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The first, second, third, fourth, sixth, tenth, eleventh and fourteenth wards of the city of Racine constitute the first assembly district of Racine county.

(b) The fifth, seventh, eighth, ninth, thirteenth and fifteenth wards of the city of Racine; and the villages of North Bay and Wind Point and the town of Caledonia constitute the second assembly district of Racine county.

(c) The twelfth ward of the city of Racine and the towns of Burlington, Dover, Mt. Pleasant, Norway, Raymond, Rochester, Waterford and Yorkville; the villages of Elmwood Park, Rochester, Sturtevant, Union Grove and Waterford; and the city of Burlington constitute the third assembly district of Racine county.

(13) ROCK COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The towns of Bradford, Harmony, Johnstown and La Prairie; and the city of Janesville constitute the first assembly district of Rock county.

(b) The towns of Avon, Beloit, Center, Fulton, Janesville, Lima, Magnolia, Milton, Newark, Plymouth, Portor, Rock, Spring Valley and Union; the villages of Footville, Milton, Milton Junction and Orfordville; and the cities of Edgerton and Evansville constitute the second assembly district of Rock county.

(c) The towns of Clinton and Turtle; the village of Clinton; and the city of Beloit constitute the third assembly district of Rock county.

(14) SHEBOYGAN COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The city of Sheboygan constitutes the first assembly district of Sheboygan county.

(b) All the towns, cities and villages of the county, except the city of Sheboygan, constitute the second assembly district of Sheboygan county.

691

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

(15) WAUKESHA COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The towns of Brookfield and Pewaukee; the villages of Butler, Elm Grove and Pewaukee; the city of Brookfield; and the first ward of the city of Waukesha constitute the first assembly district of Waukesha county.

(b) The towns of Lisbon, Merton and Oconomowoc; the villages of Chenequa, Hartland, Lac La Belle, Lannon, Menomonee Falls, Merton and Sussex; and the city of Oconomowoc constitute the second assembly district of Waukesha county.

(c) The towns of Delafield, Genesee and Waukesha; the villages of Nashotah, North Prairie and Wales; the city of Delafield; and all of the city of Waukesha except the first ward constitute the third assembly district of Waukesha county.

(d) The towns of Eagle, Mukwonago, Muskego, Ottawa, Summit and Vernon; the villages of Big Bend, Dousman, Eagle, Mukwonago and Oconomowoc Lake; and the city of New Berlin constitute the fourth assembly district of Waukesha county.

(16) WINNEBAGO COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The first, second, third, fourth, fifth, seventh, eighth, ninth, tenth, eleventh, twelfth and fifteenth wards of the city of Oshkosh constitute the first assembly district of Winnebago county.

(b) The towns of Algoma, Black Wolf, Clayton, Nekimi, Nepeuskun, Omro, Oshkosh, Poygan, Rushford, Utica, Vinland, Winchester, Winneconne and Wolf river; the village of Winneconne; the city of Omro; and the sixth, thirteenth, fourteenth and sixteenth wards of the city of Oshkosh constitute the second assembly district of Winnebago county.

(c) The towns of Menasha and Neenah; and the cities of Menasha and Neenah constitute the third assembly district of Winnebago county.

(17) WOOD COUNTY ASSEMBLY DISTRICTS. (a) The towns of Arpin, Auburndale, Cameron, Cary, Dexter, Hansen, Hiles, Lincoln, Marshfield, Milladore, Remington, Richfield, Rock, Rudolph, Sherry, Sigel and Wood; the villages of Auburndale, Milladore, Rudolph and Vesper; that part of the city of Marshfield in Wood county; and the city of Pittsville constitute the first assembly district of Wood county.

(b) The towns of Cranmoor, Grand Rapids, Port Edwards, Saratoga and Seneca; the villages of Biron and Port Edwards; and the cities of Nekoosa and Wisconsin Rapids constitute the second assembly district of Wood county.

SECTION 3. SENATE DISTRICTS. Each of these assembly district combinations is a senate district, to be numbered as shown:

(1) Door-Kewaunee, Manitowoc 1st, Manitowoc 2nd;

(2) Brown 1st, Brown 2nd, Calumet;

(3) Milwaukee 11th, Milwaukee 14th, Milwaukee 17th;

(4) Milwaukee 1st, Milwaukee 2nd, Milwaukee 19th;

(5) Milwaukee 7th, Milwaukee 9th, Milwaukee 15th;

(6) Milwaukee 5th, Milwaukee 10th, Milwaukee 13th;

(7) Milwaukee 6th, Milwaukee 23rd, Milwaukee 24th;

(8) Milwaukee 20th, Milwaukee 21st, Milwaukee 22nd;

(9) Milwaukee 3rd, Milwaukee 4th, Milwaukee 18th;

(10) Buffalo-Pepin-Pierce, Dunn, St. Croix;

(11) Milwaukee 8th, Milwaukee 12th, Milwaukee 16th;

(12) Iron-Oneida-Vilas, Langlade-Lincoln, Price-Taylor;

(13) Dodge 1st, Dodge 2nd, Washington;

(14) Outagamie 1st, Outagamie 2nd, Waupaca;

(15) Rock 1st, Rock 2nd, Rock 3rd;

(16) Dane 4th, Dane 5th, Jefferson;

(17) Grant, Green, Iowa-Lafayette;

(18) Fond du Lac 1st, Fond du Lac 2nd, Green Lake-Waushara;

(19) Winnebago 1st, Winnebago 2nd, Winnebago 3rd;

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

692

- (20) Ozaukee, Sheboygan 1st, Sheboygan 2nd;
- (21) Racine 1st, Racine 2nd, Racine 3rd;
- (22) Kenosha 1st, Kenosha 2nd, Walworth;
- (23) Barron, Chippewa, Rusk-Sawyer-Washburn;
- (24) Portage, Wood 1st, Wood 2nd;
- (25) Ashland-Bayfield, Douglas, Burnett-Polk;
- (26) Dane 1st, Dane 2nd, Dane 3rd;
- (27) Columbia, Crawford-Richland, Sauk;
- (28) Clark, Eau Claire 1st, Eau Claire 2nd;
- (29) Marathon 1st, Marathon 2nd, Menominee-Shawano;
- (30) Brown 3rd, Florence-Marquette, Forest-Oconto;
- (31) Adams-Juneau-Marquette, Monroe, Vernon;
- (32) Jackson-Trempealeau, La Crosse 1st, La Crosse 2nd;
- (33) Waukesha 1st, Waukesha 2nd, Waukesha 3rd, Waukesha 4th.

SECTION 4. WARD LINES IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE. (1) FIRST WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the intersection of an east boundary of said city and the center line of W. Silver Spring road; thence west along the center line of W. Silver Spring road to a point in the center line of N. 35th street; thence south along the center line of N. 35th street and the center line of N. 35th street extended and the center line of N. 35th street to a point in the center line of W. Townsend street; thence east along the center line of W. Townsend street to the center line of N. 27th street; thence north along the center line of N. 27th street to the center line of W. Keefe avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Keefe avenue and E. Keefe avenue to the boundary line of said city; thence along a generally northerly and westerly direction along said city limits to the point of commencement, constitutes the first ward.

(2) SECOND WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at a point in the western boundary of Milwaukee county at a point south of W. Hampton avenue where the limits of the said city runs east and west; thence east along said city limits to a point in the center line of Swan boulevard; thence northerly and north along the center line of Swan boulevard and N. 91st street to the center line of W. Villard avenue extended; thence east along the center line of W. Villard avenue extended and W. Villard avenue to the center line of N. 76th street; thence north along the center line of N. 76th street to the center line of W. Mill road; thence east along the center line of W. Mill road to the said city limits; thence northerly, westerly, southerly, northerly, westerly and southerly along the said limits to the point of commencement, constitutes the second ward.

(3) THIRD WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center line of the main channel of the Milwaukee river and the center line of E. Edgewood avenue extended, said E. Edgewood avenue being a north limits of said city; thence east along the center line of E. Edgewood avenue extended and the center line of E. Edgewood avenue to the said city limits being also the shore of Lake Michigan; thence southerly along the city limits and along the shore of Lake Michigan to a point where the center line of the Milwaukee river enters Lake Michigan, which is also the easterly city limits of said city; thence westerly and northerly along the center line of said Milwaukee river to the intersection of the center line of E. Pleasant street extended; thence east along the center line of E. Pleasant street extended and the center line of E. Pleasant street and the center line of E. Pleasant street extended to the center line of Farwell avenue; thence northeasterly along the center line of Farwell avenue to the center line of Warren avenue extended; thence north along the center line of Warren avenue extended and the center line of Warren avenue; thence northeast along the center line

693

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

of Warren avenue to the center line of Boylston street; thence west along the center line of Boylston street and Boylston street extended to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence easterly and northerly along the center line of the Milwaukee river to the place of commencement, constitutes the third ward.

(4) FOURTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center lines of W. Garfield avenue and N. 3rd street; thence west along the center line of W. Garfield avenue to the center line of N. 12th street; thence south along the center line of N. 12th street to the center line of W. Lloyd street; thence west along the center line of W. Lloyd street to the center line of N. 16th street; thence south along the center line of N. 16th street to the center line of W. Wisconsin avenue; thence west along the center line of W. Wisconsin avenue to the center line of N. 17th street; thence south along the center line of N. 17th street to the center line of W. Clybourn street; thence east along the center line of W. Clybourn street to the center line of N. 16th street; thence south along the center line of N. 16th street and S. 16th street to the center line of W. Scott street; thence east along the center line of W. Scott street to the center line of S. 1st street; thence north along the center line of S. 1st street to the center line of E. Florida street; thence east along the center line of E. Florida street to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence northwesterly and northerly along the center line of the Milwaukee river to a point of intersection with the center line of E. Pleasant street extended westerly to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence due west to the center line of N. 3rd street; thence north along the center line of N. 3rd street to the point of commencement, constitutes the fourth ward.

(5) FIFTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at a point in the west boundary of said city, which is also the point of intersection of the center lines of N. 60th street and W. Vliet street; thence easterly along the center line of W. Vliet street to the center line of N. 47th street; thence north along the center line of N. 47th street to the center line of W. Lloyd street; thence east along the center line of W. Lloyd street, W. Lisbon avenue and W. Brown street to the center line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific railway right of way; thence north along the center line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific railway right of way to the center line of W. Locust street; thence west along the center line of W. Locust street to the center line of N. 46th street; thence north along the center line of N. 46th street to the center line of W. Keefe avenue; thence west along the center line of W. Keefe avenue to the center line of N. 60th street; thence south along the center line of N. 60th street to the center line of W. Center street; thence west along the center line of W. Center street to the city limits of said city; thence southerly, easterly and southerly along the said city limits to the point of commencement, constitutes the fifth ward.

(6) SIXTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center line of S. Clement avenue with the limits of said city; thence about one-half block northwest to the center line of E. Howard avenue; thence west along the center line of E. Howard avenue and W. Howard avenue to the center line of S. 6th street; thence north along the center line of S. 6th street to the center line of W. Morgan avenue; thence west along the center line of W. Morgan avenue to the center line of S. 27th street; thence south along the center line of S. 27th street to the said city limits; thence southerly, easterly and northerly along the said city limits to the point of commencement, constitutes the sixth ward.

(7) SEVENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center lines of N. 35th street and W. Hampton avenue; thence west along the center line of W.

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

694

Hampton avenue to the center line of N. 68th street; thence south along the center line of N. 68th street to the center line of W. Ruby street; thence west along the center line of W. Ruby street to the center line of N. 76th street; thence south along the center line of N. 76th street to the center line of W. Appleton avenue; thence southeasterly along the center line of W. Appleton avenue to the center line of W. Keefe avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Keefe avenue to the center line of N. 46th street; thence south along the center line of N. 46th street to the center line of W. Locust street; thence east along the center line of W. Locust street to the center line of N. 27th street; thence north along the center line of N. 27th street to the center line of W. Townsend street; thence west along the center line of W. Townsend street to the center line of N. 35th street; thence north along the center line of N. 35th street and the center line of N. 35th street extended to the center line of W. Hampton avenue and the point of commencement, constitutes the seventh ward.

(8) EIGHTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center lines of N. 16th street and W. Walnut street; thence west along the center line of W. Walnut street to the center line of N. 29th street; thence south along the center line of N. 29th street and the center line of N. 29th street extended to the center line of W. Canal street; thence west along the center line of W. Canal street and W. Canal street extended to the center line of S. 44th street; thence southerly along the center line of 44th street to a point in the city limits of said city; thence east and south along said city limits to a point where the said city limits intersects with W. Greenfield avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Greenfield avenue to the center line of S. 24th street; thence north along the center line of S. 24th street to the center line of W. Scott street; thence east along the center line of W. Scott street to the center line of S. 16th street; thence north along the center line of S. 16th street and N. 16th street to the center line of W. Clybourn street; thence west along the center line of W. Clybourn street to the center line of N. 17th street; thence north along the center line of N. 17th street to the center line of W. Wisconsin avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Wisconsin avenue to the center line of N. 16th street; thence north along the center line of N. 16th street to the center line of W. Walnut street and the point of commencement, constitutes the eighth ward.

(9) NINTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center line of W. Mill road with the east limits of said city; thence west along the center line of W. Mill road to the center line of N. 76th street; thence south along the center line of N. 76th street to the center line of W. Ruby avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Ruby avenue to the center line of N. 68th street; thence north along the center line of N. 68th street to the center line of W. Hampton avenue; thence west along the center line of W. Hampton avenue to the center line of N. 35th street; thence north along the center line of N. 35th street to the center line of W. Silver Spring road; thence east along the center line of W. Silver Spring road to the east limits of said city; thence northerly along the east limits of said city to the point of commencement, constitutes the ninth ward.

(10) TENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center lines of W. Keefe avenue and N. 20th street; thence west along W. Keefe avenue to the center line of N. 27th street; thence south along the center line of N. 27th street to the center line of W. Locust street; thence west along the center line of W. Locust street to the center line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific railway right of way; thence south along the center line of the Chicago, Milwaukee, St. Paul and Pacific railway right of way to the center line of W. Brown street; thence west along the center line of W. Brown street to the center line of N. 35th street; thence south along

695

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

the center line of N. 35th street to the center line of W. Galena street; thence east on W. Galena street to the center line of N. 29th street; thence north along the center line of N. 29th street to the center line of W. Walnut street; thence east along the center line of W. Walnut street to the center line of N. 16th street; thence north along the center line of N. 16th street to the center line of W. Lloyd street; thence west along the center line of W. Lloyd street to the center line of N. 18th street; thence north along the center line of N. 18th street to the center line of W. Wright street; thence west along the center line of W. Wright street to the center line of N. 20th street; thence north along the center line of N. 20th street to the center line of W. Keefe avenue and the point of commencement, constitutes the tenth ward.

(11) ELEVENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point where the center line of S. 27th street intersects the city limits at W. Howard avenue; thence north along the center line of said N. 27th street to the center line of W. Dakota street; thence west along the center line of W. Dakota street to the center line of S. 35th street; thence north along the center line of S. 35th street to the center line of W. Lincoln avenue; thence west about 1½ blocks along the center line of W. Lincoln avenue to the said city limits; thence generally in a westerly, southerly and easterly direction along the said city limits to the center line of S. 27th street and to the point of commencement, constitutes the eleventh ward.

(12) TWELFTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center lines of S. 1st street and W. Scott street; thence west along the center line of W. Scott street to the center line of S. 24th street; thence south along the center line of S. 24th street one block to the center line of W. Greenfield avenue; thence west along the center line of W. Greenfield avenue to the west city limits; thence generally in a southerly direction along the said city limits to the center line of W. Rogers street; thence east along the center line of W. Rogers street to the center line of S. 6th street; thence south along the center line of S. 6th street to the center line of W. Becher street; thence east along the center line of W. Becher street to the center line of S. 1st street; thence north along the center line of S. 1st street to the center line of W. Scott street and the point of commencement, constitutes the twelfth ward.

(13) THIRTEENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at a point in the intersection of N. 6th street and W. Keefe avenue; thence west along the center line of W. Keefe avenue to the center line of N. 20th street; thence south along the center line of N. 20th street to the center line of W. Wright street; thence east along the center line of W. Wright street to the center line of N. 18th street; thence south along the center line of N. 18th street to the center line of W. Lloyd street; thence east along the center line of W. Lloyd street to the center line of N. 12th street; thence north along the center line of N. 12th street to the center line of W. Garfield avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Garfield avenue to the center line of N. 3rd street; thence north along the center line of N. 3rd street to the center line of W. Locust street; thence west along the center line of W. Locust street to the center line of N. 5th street; thence north along the center line of N. 5th street to the center line of W. Concordia avenue; thence west one block along the center line of W. Concordia avenue to the center line of N. 6th street; thence north one block along the center line of N. 6th street to the center line of W. Keefe avenue and the point of commencement, constitutes the thirteenth ward.

(14) FOURTEENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center lines of S. 6th street and W. Rogers street; thence west along the center line of W. Rogers street to the city limits; thence south along said city limits to the

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

696

center line of W. Lincoln avenue; thence east about 1½ blocks along the center line of W. Lincoln avenue to the center line of S. 35th street; thence south along the center line of S. 35th street to the center line of W. Dakota street; thence east along the center line of W. Dakota street to the center line of S. 27th street; thence south along the center line of S. 27th street to the center line of W. Morgan avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Morgan avenue to the center line of S. 6th street; thence north along the center line of S. 6th street to the center line of W. Becher street and the point of commencement, constitutes the fourteenth ward.

(15) FIFTEENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at a point where the center line of Swan boulevard intersects the boundary of said city south of W. Hampton avenue; thence northeasterly and north along the center line of Swan boulevard and N. 91st street to a point in the center line of W. Villard avenue extended; thence east along the center line of W. Villard avenue extended and W. Villard avenue to the center line of N. 76th street; thence south along the center line of N. 76th street to the center line of W. Appleton avenue; thence southeasterly along the center line of W. Appleton avenue to the center line of W. Keefe avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Keefe avenue to the center line of N. 60th street; thence south along the center line of N. 60th street to the center line of W. Center street; thence west along the center line of W. Center street about 1½ blocks to a point where the limits of the city of Milwaukee and the city of Wauwatosa meet; thence along said city limits westerly and northerly to the point of commencement, constitutes the fifteenth ward.

(16) SIXTEENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of intersection of the center line of W. Vliet street and the city limits; thence east along the center line of W. Vliet street to the center line of N. 47th street; thence north along the center line of N. 47th street to the center line of W. Lloyd street; thence east along the center line of W. Lloyd street to the center line of W. Lisbon avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Lisbon avenue to the center line of W. Brown street; thence east along the center line of W. Brown street to the center line of N. 35th street; thence south along the center line of N. 35th street to the center line of W. Galena street; thence east along the center line of W. Galena street to the center line of N. 29th street; thence south along the center line of N. 29th street (said center line setting over to the west on W. Juneau avenue and back to the east on W. Wisconsin avenue) and the center line of N. 29th street extended to the center line of W. Canal street; thence west along the center line of W. Canal street and W. Canal street extended to the center line of S. 44th street; thence south along the center line of S. 44th street to the limits of said city; thence westerly, northerly, easterly and northerly along the city limits to the point of commencement, constitutes the sixteenth ward.

(17) SEVENTEENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the center line of the mouth of the Milwaukee river where said Milwaukee river intersects with the east limits of said city; thence westerly and northwesterly along the center line of said Milwaukee river to a point where the said Milwaukee river intersects with the center line of E. Florida street extended; thence west along the center line of E. Florida street extended and E. Florida street to the center line of S. 1st street; thence south along the center line of S. 1st street to the center line of W. Becher street; thence west along the center line of W. Becher street to the center line of S. 6th street; thence south along the center line of S. 6th street to the center line of W. Howard avenue; thence east along the center line of W. Howard avenue and E. Howard avenue to the center line of S. Clement avenue; thence southeasterly along the center line of S. Clement avenue about one block to the limits of said city;

697

JOINT RESOLUTIONS

thence easterly, northwesterly and northerly along the limits of said city to the point of commencement, constitutes the seventeenth ward.

(18) EIGHTEENTH WARD. That part of the city of Milwaukee bounded by a line commencing at the point of the intersection of the center line of E. Keefe avenue with the center line of the main channel of the Milwaukee river; thence west along the center line of E. Keefe avenue and W. Keefe avenue to the center line of N. 6th street; thence south one block along the center line of N. 6th street to the center line of W. Concordia avenue; thence east one block along the center line of W. Concordia avenue to the center line of N. 5th street; thence south along the center line of N. 5th street to the center line of W. Locust street; thence east 2 blocks along the center line of W. Locust street to the center line of N. 3rd street; thence south along the center line of N. 3rd street to a point due west from the center line of E. Pleasant street extended to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence east along the said line to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence east along the center line of E. Pleasant street extended, E. Pleasant street, and E. Pleasant street extended to the center line of Farwell avenue; thence northeasterly along the center line of Farwell avenue to the center line of Warren avenue extended; thence north along the center line of Warren avenue extended and the center line of Warren avenue; thence northeast along the center line of Warren avenue to the center line of Boylston street; thence west along the center line of Boylston street to the center line of the Milwaukee river; thence easterly and northerly along the center line of the Milwaukee river to the place of commencement, constitutes the eighteenth ward.

SECTION 5. The common council of the city of Milwaukee may adopt the ward lines described by metes and bounds in this act for the purpose of legislative districting as the wards of the city of Milwaukee for municipal purposes. Be it further

Resolved, That this reapportionment shall take effect with the elections held in November 1964 for the selection of state senators and assemblymen.

Jt. Res. No. 66, S.

No. 50, 1963

A JOINT RESOLUTION

Expressing appreciation to the Congress of the United States for giving favorable consideration to the development of a scientific center in southern Wisconsin.

WHEREAS, the Midwest University Research Association consists of 15 of the major universities in the midwest incorporated under the laws of Illinois as a "not for profit" corporation; and

WHEREAS, this association has a contractual arrangement with the Atomic Energy Commission for the installation of a model accelerator at a location southeast of Madison; and

WHEREAS, this research facility in the shadow of the University of Wisconsin will do much to enhance the development of scientific research at midwestern universities; and

WHEREAS, a panel of the President's scientific advisory committee and the advisory committee of the Atomic Energy Commission has issued a

CERTIFICATION FOR SUPPLEMENTAL APPENDIX

I hereby certify that this supplemental appendix complies with § 809.19(3)(b) and that it contains, at a minimum: (1) a table of contents; and (2) a copy of any unpublished opinion cited under § 809.23(3)(a) or (b). It also includes portions of the record essential to an understanding of the issues raised that were not included in Appendices filed by other parties on October 16, 2023.

I further certify that if the record is required by law to be confidential, the portions of the record included in the appendix are reproduced using one or more initials or appropriate pseudonym or designation instead of full names of persons, specifically including juveniles and parties of juveniles, with a notation that the portions of the record have been so reproduced to preserve confidentiality and with appropriate references to the record.

Respectfully submitted this 30th day of October 2023.

Electronically signed by Tamara B. Packard
Tamara B. Packard, SBN 1023111